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HOTELS - BROWN HILL - BALLARAT

AND THE ROADS TRAVELLED IN THE AREA

During the early days of Ballarat the people who were not looking for gold were busy
starting new businesses, carting water, grocery stores, clothing, and of course a supply
of liquor. Hotels flourished very rapidly in Ballarat and most were within walking
distances of the miners. Others were strategically placed along main roads from
town to town within riding distances on a horse. The closer to the heart of the town
the more palatial became the building.

The staple of life was bread, and by 1854 a Bakery was for sale stating they baked
three and a half tons of flour per week, with an assured supply of wood for their two
ovens. A price war for bread occurred in 1857 with the price of a four pound loaf of
bread being lowered by 25% to one and sixpence (15¢) with bread being delivered by
cart tent to tent to sell their bread before their opposition.

Water for bathing was another problem, and the Red Hill Swimming Baths were
advertised “adjoining the Windsor Hotel, George King has regardless of expense,
erected a swimming bath four and a half feet by twenty one and a half feet, and
having made arrangements with Mr.Kirk for a continual supply of pure water, will be
opened on Saturday”

In the same year as the price of war for bread was going on, and the Windsor was
attracting patrons with Swimming Baths, “the Unicorn Hotel was sold to Thomas
Vaughan for the sum of Five Thousand and Fifty Pounds sterling. Consisting of
about a quarter of an acre of land in Sturt Street with the hotel and offices attached all
of which are built of timber.” This was also the year the Brown Hill Hotel’s humble
beginning started, obtaining a hotel license on the 12" June 1857. Ten years later,
the Eagle Hotel in Armstrong Street was advertising a pint of ale for threepence.

In the 1870’s, the Hotels were complaining about the charge by the Water
Commission of 10 shillings per year for water to fill the horse troughs in front of their
establishments.

During the 1880's the temperance movement was much in vogue, with wives of
miners and town folk, trying to build a respectable town. The licensing board closed
some of the smaller establishments, trying to control the number of hotels in
existence, but trading still continued to 11.30pm.

In 1916 the Temperance Society won the war, the goldfields had been replaced with

townships and families, and gradually the mines began to peter out in the 1880's thus
the rollicking times of "rags to riches" by 1916 had ceased. The hotels were now to

close at 6pm.

Votes and referendums were taken for years after to change the closing time, but due
to the 1% World War, The Depression and the 2™ World War, the rights of a drink




after 6pm was not high on the agenda. After the Second World War finished in 1945
communities started to come back to a normal lifestyle. With more people at work,
and the future looking brighter, the time of closing hotels was put back on the agenda
in the 1950's, and finally in 1966 the vote for ten o'clock closing was passed with
hotels being able to open until 10pm. Meals and music once again came to the
Hotels - instead of just the Men's bar area and a small secluded Ladies Room - the
rooms were opened up and extended for mixed patronage.

Hotels in the area are listed below:

ALBION HOTEL, James Watt, Gong Gong.

BREWERY TAP HOTEL - Cnr.Melbourne Road and Brewery Tap Road.
Started as "The Glen" in 1866. Melbourne Road is now the Western
Highway.

Still operating.

Brewery Tap Hotel.

BROWN HILL HOTEL — Humffray Street North.
Opened June 1857. First licensee was Mr.T.Ryan. This hotel is still
operating.
This hotel is shown on the 1861 Map. Mr.Ryan is also listed in the Bryce
Ross’s Directory of 1853 as having a Store at Brown Hill. As a patron of the
National School at Brown Hill, he was listed as having a Store and a Hotel in
1857. The first Brown Hill Post Office was started in Ryan’s Store in 1857.

Brown Hill ‘Hotel




Surveyor’s General Map 1861. Reproduced with the permission of the Keeper of Public Records,
Public Record Office, Victoria, A_ustralia{’

N

Brown Hill Hotel — Extensions of residential area — 1995.
New bistro section added 2004, which is not shown in this photo.




EASTERN RAILWAY - Humffray Street North - (1882) is now replaced with
Rumerz Tavern and the Leagues Club, Pokies & Dinning.

EASTERN STATION - Cnr Humffray & Rowe Streets. (1862)
Extensive renovations have taken place over the last few years and it is now a
Licensed Guest House. Sold in June 2002, and still incorporating the lovely
stained glass windows on the Rowe Street side of the Hotel with the lettering
“Eastern Station” incorporated into the stained window. In 2004 this Hotel
became a B & B, but it still operates with a licence and has its original bar area.
It is thought that this might be the two-storied hotel that Thomas Hunt built,
In addition, was listed as the licensee of in 1863. He had originally owned the
Prince of Wales Hotel in Brown Hill and then opened another Hotel called the
Prince of Wales Hotel in Humffray Street North between Mair Street and the
Railway Line. “We must not omit to notice that Mr.Hunt, of the Prince of
Wales Hotel, Humffray Street has nearly completed the erection of a handsome
two-storied brick hotel at the corner of Humffray Street and Scott’s Parade.
The design is by Mr.Black, and the building includes some 30 rooms. The cost
of the erection will be about 1200 pounds” as reported in the Miner & Weekly
Star 27/6/1862.

Eastern Station Hotel — Built in1862.
Corner Rowe & Humffray Street North.

FELLMONGERS ARMS - Fire damaged in 1911. Licensee in1859 Aldrich
Edward. Set back from Gong Gong Road on the Brewery Tap Road.

Last publican Mr.Nestor on March 6, 1902 (Lot No.29)

Thomas Nestor bought the Fellmonger’s Arms at Gong Gong from

Mary O’Connor. Hotel was destroyed by fire on June 2, 1911.

This Hotel was advertised For Sale in May 1858 with the following notice —
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“to sell by public auction, on the above-named day, on the premises,

- immediately after the sale of that property known as the Fellmonger’s, lately
occupied by Mr.Castilla, those extensive and substantially built premises,

— known as —
THE FELLMONGER’S ARMS, AND STORES, lately in the occupation of

= Mr.Edwards, consisting of a well built HOTEL, containing eight rooms, with

— bar and fitting; also, store adjoining, with counter shelves, &c, &c., the whole
being enclosed with a secure fence and large garden, together with a well

- assorted stock of groceries, drapery, &c. The auctioneer would call special
attention to the sale, as, from the immense traffic and large population now

— settled in this locality, it must command a handsome competency to the
purchaser. Terms — Cash — Sale at twelve o’clock sharp.”

= On the same day without any reserve, the following valuable property lately

— occupied by Mr.Castilla (fellmonger) situated at Brown Hill, Ballarat
consisting of extensive woolshed, combing rooms, drying room, large

- stabling, outhouses, four roomed cottage, men’s huts, drying ground, drays,
hides, chaffcutter, woolpacks. This business was apparently next to the

— Fellmonger’s Arms Hotel, and they stressed the fact that the business was next

to a “never failing supply of water”.
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d GONG GONG HOTEL - Daylesford Road 1875-1882. First licensee E.Giles.
This was previously the "Sons of Freedom Hotel". Mrs.Giles advertised on
— 12" March 1875 that she would be applying for a licence for a Hotel which
- would be named the Gong Gong Hotel. ~ Sadly, Mrs.Giles died from
complications in giving birth to a child in April of that year.
Fire caused the hotel to close in 1882. (Daylesford Road was commonly
- Called Gong Gong Road.)
(On the 1882 Ballarat Directory this hotel is shown to be
— Situated between John Reid, carter, and Benjamin Avent, carpenter, at the end
- of Humffray Street North, with Carr as the Licensee. Mr. George Carr had
previously been the Blacksmith next to the Brown Hill Post Office. Licensees
— were Ellen Giles and then James Giles in 1875-76, Stevenson in 1876-77,

George Carr in 1878-1882.
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This licence was transferred to The Imperial Hotel in 1882, after the damage
by fire to the Gong Gong Hotel. One of the interesting aspects of this Hotel is
that it was apparently over the years enlarged and became a two storey
building and was very well known as the Gong Gong Ballroom, for its musical
and dance programs.

MEAGHER'S HOTEL - 194 Victoria Street, near Buninyong Railway Line.
Licensee in 1875 James Meagher, Melbourne Road, (Victoria Street.).
Closed late 1990's (Previously the Bricklayers Arms Hotel, then Jacksons,
Northages and then Meaghers.) The tollgate was near this hotel.

Meagher’s Hotel, Victoria Street. (Not operating now)

To the left of the photo the walk way across the Buninyong
Railway line. This road has just been made into a dual
highway across the old Railway bridge.

6
Site of Gong Gong Hotel — Sec.221, allotment 4.
Reproduced with the permission of the Keeper of
Public Records, Public Record Office Victoria, .
Australia. i View of Humffray Street North — Gong Gong Hotel was
sthwnlicts situated on the right-hand side of this photo.
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IMPERIAL HOTEL - Corner of Humffray & Mair Streets. (1857 - 1907)

— Fire on Bakery Hill — “Considerable excitement was occasioned yesterday
afternoon a little after five o'clock, by an alarm of fire on the Bakery Hill

= Road, near the Black Hill. The alarm was but too well grounded, as a fire had

— broken out in a calico tent, adjoining the IMPERIAL HOTEL, on the west
side. The tent was burnt in a few seconds, and the gable end of the hotel being

~ of wood and close to the tent, with the wind blowing right on to it, soon
caught.”

— “The hotel was a mass of flames in a fearfully short space of time, and was,
with the large new wooden erection adjoining, completely destroyed in about

- fifteen minutes, only a few articles of furniture and the valuables being

— rescued. Fortunately the three places enumerated formed an isolated block,
having a space of some forty or fifty feet clear at each end, and thus the fire

- was saved from communicating with the other dwellings. The tents in the rear
were also saved; one or two intervening tents of small value being pulled

— down. The heat of the flames was so intense that a shingle chimney on the

- opposite site of the way exhibited at one time rather unpleasant signs of
incipient ignition. The shingle-roofed place beyond the burnt block on the

- east and leeward side got a scorching too, but was saved by being covered
with watered woollens.”

- “The Fire Brigade hook and ladder apparatus was quickly on the spot, and we
remarked Messrs.Boyd, Dyte, and others of the Brigade, actively engaged in

— throwing water on the burning ruins, the water being supplied from water-

— carts. The engine was at last got into play from the Flat, the water from the
two lines of hose completing the extinguishment already begun by the men of

- buckets. The Police, under Inspector Taylor, were very promptly on the spot,
and kept excellent order among the large crowd. What might have been the

- limit of the conflagration, had it broken out in the night, it is difficult to say, as
although the neighbourhood is not densely peopled, and the wind was

— favourable, the dry condition of everything combustible after the hot wind of

— the previous day, renders it extremely probable that the extent of the danger
would have been much greater. The Fire Brigade made their appearance

- towards the close. The rapid manner in which the buildings were destroyed,
rendered their efforts of little avail, and beyond quenching the embers their

- services on the occasion were fortunately not required for further exertion.”
Before the construction of the Railway Line, this hotel was situated at

— approximately where the railways good sheds are. Burnt down in fire

- 24/12/1857 as written up in The Star on Christmas Day. Rebuilt, and then
sold on April, 7, 1862, to make way for extra land for the Railways.
The Hotel at the corner of Wills (Mair Street) and Humffray Street was then

— called the Imperial Hotel, apparently after the previous hotel. The Hotel was
re-opened as the WELCOME NUGGET and then later traded as the

— BLARNEY INN. Fire damaged. Then renovated and extended and

— renamed the GAMEKEEPERS SECRET.




Map — Site of Imperial Hotel, Prince of Wales Hotel, H.Gabbett’s Duke of
Richmond Hotel in Humffray Street North, with the intended Ballarat
Railway Line shown.
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QUEENS HEAD HOTEL - Started in 1862 were the current bottle shop is and then

built on the corner of Queen and Humffray St.Nth. Still operating today.
The inquest of the bulger from the Ballarat Volunteer Ranges in 1864, after
he had been found tragically in a muddy watery mine hole was held at this
hotel. Police Constable McNally carrying the man to the Queen’s Head
Hotel, which was close by.

The Black Hill Flat was a very busy mining area.

Site of Queen’s Head Hotel — Humffray Street North. The first street Street crossing this map
is Otway Street and then in the middle of the map is Queen Street, followed by Oliver Street
on the bottom of the map.
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Reproduced with the permission of the Keeper of Public Records, Public Record Office Victoria, Australia.

Queen’s Head Hotel — This building erected in 1907. (Bottle shop
next door.)
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SONS OF FREEDOM - First Licensee T.F. McKenna 1865.
The first licence was obtained for a dwelling containing a bar, two sitting
rooms and two bedrooms, in Humffray Street North. (This was in the middle
of the block between Turner’s the Butchers, the Brown Hill Post Office and
Gregory Street (now called Duggan Street). The Licence was granted in the
Ballarat East Court on October 6, 1865. The next licensee was James Tyack
and Catherine Tyack.

In March 1875 a new Licence was issued and the new Licensee named it
the Gong Gong Hotel.

WHITE SWAN HOTEL - Owned by W.Ritchie. Situated on Springs Road. This
land was unfortunately the site chosen for the White Swan Reservoir.
What is left of the hotel is now under the water contained in the White Swan
Reservoir.

WOODMANS INN - Melbourne Road (1864). Was originally a changing post for
Horses and coaches. (Later became known as Woodman's Arms.) Situated at
the top of Woodman's Hill. (Closed by Reduction Board in 1915.)

WOOLPACK HOTEL, Gong Gong Road. (1872-1936). This is, of course, is now
called the Daylesford Road. First licensee - Ditchburn.  This was one of
the many hotels to be given notice by the Licensing Reduction Board in

1925. Many of these hotels kept trading until the end of the time allowed.
After many reprieves this hotel was closed in 1936. Last licensee Ellen
McGrath. It was situated next door to O'Days bakery. (Western Highway
Bypass is now on this site.)

VICTORIA HOTEL - Victoria Street (now known as Old Melbourne Road).
This hotel was situated near Ryan Street. First licensee J.Fallon in 1869.
Closed by Reduction Board in 1921.

Site of Victoria Hotel, Allotment No.7 Section 212.
Reproduced with the permission of the Keeper of Public Records, Public Record Office
Victoria, Australia.
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NATIVE YOUTH HOTEL - Humffray Street North - Cnr.Haines Street - 1859
Shown on 1861 Map. This hotel was advertised for Sale Sept 2, 1857 with the
following description —

“The undersigned are instructed by the proprietor, to dispose of by
private sale, those premises situated at Little Bendigo, known as THE
NATIVE YOUTH HOTEL. Comprising a substantially built
weatherboard and shingled building, containing a spacious bar and
fittings, complete, with good cellar underneath, bar-parlour, sitting-
room and two bedrooms, a recently erected bagatelle-room, detached
kitchen and outhouses, stabling for six horses, coach-house, &c.,
enclosed by a spacious well fenced yard. The stock, &c., may be
taken at a valuation, the terms very liberal. Full particulars may be
taken on application to Mitchison Brothers, Main Road.”

PRINCE OF WALES HOTEL - Brown Hill Flat.
This Hotel was apparently at the Brown Hill Flat in July 1857 with the
Licensee Mr.Hunt. The hotel was advertised for sale on the 1% February 1858,
as
“a first-rate property, and doing a good business. The furniture and stock to be
taken as agreed. Also, one of the best Conveyance Carts in the colony, with
patent axles, two sets plated harness, and a handsome grey horse, fit for any
purpose (a good opportunity for any person commencing the conveyancing
business), light dray and harness, etc. Apply to Thos.Hunt, proprietor, on the
premises”.

PRINCE OF WALES HOTEL — Humffray Street North between Mair Street & the
Railway line. By June 1862 Thomas Hunt had built a two storeyed Hotel.
“Mr.Hunt, of the Prince of Wales Hotel, Humffray Street, has nearly
completed the erection of a handsome two-storied brick hotel at the corner of
Humffray Street and Scott’s Parade. The design is by Mr.Black, and the
building includes 30 rooms. The cost of the erection will be about One
Thousand Two Hundred Pounds.” As reported in the Miner & Weekly Star
27/6/1862.

BLACK HILL HOTEL - Situated in Humffray Street opposite the Red Bull Hotel.

SAWYERS’ ARMS HOTEL — South East Corner of Oliver and Humffray Street
Containing a bar, two sitting rooms and four bedrooms. Hotel opened in
October 1864. Licensee George Gude. This Hotel later became the
Salutation Hotel with the licensee being Annie Olsen in 1867.

CAPE OF GOOD HOPE HOTEL — Brown Hill
In January 1863 this Hotel was advertised for Sale and it also mentioned that it
was situated near Mr.Ryan’s Hotel, which was the Brown Hill Hotel in
Humffray Street. The Advertisement in The Star Newspaper reads as
follows-

"For Sale - That old established business place known as the CAPE OF
GOOD HOPE HOTEL AND STORE on Brown Hill, near Mr.Ryan. Doing
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a very good cash business at present, principally at all the saw mills in

- Bullarook Forest, where upwards of sixty families are weekly served with all
the necessaries of life, and which can easily by doubled without any extra

o expense. The only reason for selling is that the present occupier is leaving for
home, on account of ill health. Full particulars may be had from Mr.Lofven,

= at Messrs.Tuxon and Co's. Main Road, Ballarat, or on the premises. Also for

— sale, a first-rate cottage piano, chap; a patent mangle; and a lot of goats."

- On the same day as this Cape of Good Hope Hotel& Store was for sale The
Plank Road Hotel (Main Road) was advertised for sale plus Livery Stalls and

they made sure they mentioned the fact that it was besides a Government road.
The Hotel was advertised as having every convenience and then the sale of
Casey’s Cabs & Horses, which comprised of “One American Carryall, five

— Buninyong Cars, a Single Brake and Water Cart with suitable harness for all,
plus SIXTEEN HORSES, twenty (20) Horse Stalls, Coach and Car Sheds.

— GOLDEN ROOSTER RECEPTION CENTRE

= Enoch Wuelfing built this Reception Centre in 1968, on an old chicken farm in

— Lovfen Street, Nerrina. Originally Mr.Wuelfing came out to the Melbourne
Olympics in 1956 as the Chef for the German Olympic team. He even went

- back to Germany to import the Hungarian Bavarian Lights for the Reception
Centre.

— The fully licensed Reception Centre opened as the first licensed restaurant in

- Ballarat to hold 200 people.

— In a Surveyor's Report, in 1865, the surveyor stated that he had visited the
Springs and Little Bendigo and recommended the construction of one bridge

- across the Yarrowee, and three culverts. Later a public meeting was held at
the Speedwell Hotel to devise a means to obtain roads for their locality. It

— was decided to have one main road made by Mr.Lofven's Store and crossing

- the creek somewhere about the Band of Hope claim. This road would
eventually connect the Springs district with Little Bendigo and Ballarat East.

— This Store of Mr.Lofven's is approximately, where the Reception Centre was
built in Lofven Street.

Nerrina Tavern.
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NERRINA TAVERN
The Golden Rooster Reception Centre was then purchased by Gull, (1970's)
and apparently changed the complex to include the Nerrina Tavern. The
licensees after Gull included Tony Bourke and Des Holloways.
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BURKIE'S TAVERN. - Situated at 73-75 Lofven Street.
In 1994 John Burke became the licensee of Nerrina Tavern and changed the
name to Burkie's Tavern. In 2001 there was Brian Vince and for 3-4 months
at the end of 2002 John Burke was once again operating Burkie's Tavern.

THE NERRINA - In March 2003 Kelly Roscoe was licensee, having taken
over from John Burke, the licensee of Burkie's Tavern. Now trading under a
new name of “The Nerrina”. At present they currently run a Morning
Melodies with Graeme Vendy OA, on the Keyboard.

Hotels in LITTLE BENDIGO and NERRINA.

MONTE CHRISTO HOTEL - 1861
SPEEDWELL HOTEL - 1864 - 1915 (Closed by Reduction Board.)
LITTLE BENDIGO - At the end of Lofven Street. This hotel appears on the

Surveyor's General Map of 1861 - Closed 1918 by Reduction Board.
Devison, the first owner and licensee built the hotel.

o “Jackson’s Tin Shed” in Lovfen Street.
G(l)wf“ (L~ & Approximate vicinity of where Speedwell Hotel
AN "‘”0, o was situated.
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Reproduced with the permission of the Keeper of Public Records, Public Record Office Victoria, Australia.
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AULD REEKIE HOTEL, Hillcrest Road 1856.(Old Eureka Lead) (Hornsby
& Weatherby). Licensee Thomas Horan 12/6/1857. This hotel was
advertising Concerts on Wednesday and Saturday evenings with admission
free in March 1856. In September 1857 they were advertising a Full Dress
Ball for Wednesday Evening with Mons.Paltzer's Band. Tickets including
refreshments, and lady and gentleman at 10s.6d, dancing to start at 9 p.m. In
November 1857, they were advertising a "Full Dress Ball" with Charles
Powell as Master of Ceremonies and Fleury's Dance Band. Tickets to admit
Lady and Gentleman at 10s and 6d.

Appears on the 1861 Map. Believed to have closed in 1861.
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EUREKA HOTEL - J.Dowling Licensee. 1882. (Situated at Little Bendigo)

SCANDINAVIAN HOTEL - Licensee O.Skogland 1861.
Geo Nott, Licensee — The Star May 30, 1861

TEMPERANCE HOTEL -believed to have been situated in Lofven Street
at approximately where the Western by-pass goes through.

CALEDONIAN LEAD Hotels

All Nations — 1856
Greyhound Hotel — 1858 —A house was advertised for sale in 1858 and

described as a commodious wooden store and dwelling house situated near to
the Greyhound Hotel, Caledonian Lead.

BROWN HILL HOTEL - 385 Humffray Street North.

Licensee’s:
THOMAS RYAN 1857
FRANCIS BRADBURY 1867
GEORGE SCHMIDT 1882

PATRICK O’DAY 1887
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WILLIAM O’DAY 1894

HONORA O’DAY 1900
HONORA MCMAHON 1901
EDGAR PETER 1903
ALEX BUCHANAN 1905
ADA HAMLYN 1906 Social Club’s Christmas Tree — 1978
STEPHEN SKIPPER 1906
JOHN KELLY 1907
MICHAEL HARRINGTON 1908
WILLIAM MANLEY 1910
JULIA GALVIN 1911
THOMAS KINCADE 1912
ALAN MCGREGOR 1913
BRIDGET BRAYBROOK 1921
CHARLES RICE 1930
JUNE CARSON 1936
MARY TURNER 1937
HERBERT BOWMAN 1943
MARTIN CONNELLY 1947
JOHN SHEPPERBOTTOM 1948
JAMES ARTHUR 1949
JOHN RASDELL 1951
DONALD HUNTER 1953
WILLIAM TURNER 1957
JAMES HAYES 1963
GEORGE HAINTZ 1966
EARL BROOKS 1980
SHIRLEY BROOKS 1994
KEVIN FRANCIS 1995
ANTHONY KOOPE 1998
KEVIN HARRIS 2002

Photo courtesy of Kevin Harris.




QUEEN’S HEAD HOTEL - 146 Humffray Street North.

- Licensees:
5 THOMAS SEWELL 1862
— MRS. SEWELL 1869
ANDREW BEATTIE 1875
- ANTONIO DE CARVALHO 1878
THOMAS BOULTER 1880
- RICHARD GRENFELL 1891
EDWARD WREN 1893
- ALEX BUCHANAN 1902
~ PATRICK POWER 1903
BRIDGET POWER 1903
- JAMES QUINLIVAN 1911
MICHAEL FISCALINI 1913
— SUSAN O’ DONOHUE 1920
- SUSAN CANNY 1922
CHARLES LANG 1925
- RICHARD SIMPSON 1928
CHARLES BOYTON 1929
- SIDNEY ESAIAS 1930
VERONICA ESAIAS 1935
— JOHN WALKER 1937
- ALICE HUTCHINS 1937
CHARLES VALLINS 1938
- EDMUND O’KEEFE 1940
GIO CANEVA 1942
- DOROTHEA FLOOD 1947
NORA COLE 1949
— EDWARD HENNESSY 1950
- JOHN MAHER 1962
TERRANCE CAHILL 1968
— CARL MAY 1978
DANIEL MOLONEY 1980
- JAMES BOAK 1982
BRIAN REMILTON 1984
- WAYNE WALDRON 1986
- SHARON BOTT 1988
- DEW DROP INN — North West corner of Stawell and Humffray Streets.
Licensees:
R. ANDERSON 1876
— RICHARD MARSHALL 1882
- JOHN OLIVER 1882
JAMES JACKSON 1883
- LOUISA DUFFY 1883

THOMAS SCOTT 1885
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JAMES DAVIS

RUSSELL SQUARE HOTEL — Nth West Corner of Stawell & Humffray Streets.
- (Previously called Dew Drop Inn).
Licensees:

JOSEPH THOMPSON 1890
(Closed 1892).

- ROBERT BURNS HOTEL - south side of Humffray Street
between Otway & Queen streets.
= Licensees:
JOHN FERGUSON 1872
-~ JAS MILLER 1874
JOHN FERGUSON 1876
— WILLIAM RETALLICK 1877
DANIEL MCKECHNIE 1877
= JOHN BRAITHEWAITE 1878
— JAMES KINSEY 1878
JAMES NICHOLLS 1878
- DANIEL HICKS 1879
ALBERT GRAHAM 1881
— WILLIAM DAVIDSON 1882
WILLIAM DOBBIN 1883
2 RICHARD WOOFE 1884

UNION HOTEL - South side of Humffray Street, between Princes & King Sts.

- Licensees:

o J.H.SPANHAKE 1857
— HEINRICK BECKMAN 1890
- (Closed 1892)

SEVEN STARS HOTEL - South side of Humffray Street, 2 doors from

— Southwest corner of Stawell Street.
- THOMAS GRENFELL 1890
ELIZABETH CREMIN 1892
= FRANK SETTER 1893
- JOHN SALTER 1894
MARY CREMIN 1895
— DANIEL FOGARTY 1898

MARY CREMIN 1904
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THOMAS MOLONEY 1904

MARGARET TURTON 1905
THOMAS TRAFFORD 1907
ELIZABETH WRIGHT 1908
FRANCES WILLIAMS 1912
MARY CREMIN 1912
ALBERT SUDWEEKS 1915

(Closed 1920)

RED BULL HOTEL - North side of Humffray Street,
Between Queen and Newman Streets.

Licensees:

WILLIAM BULL 1858 R e
ANN BULL 1876 ‘ BAI.I:’::A/',:’/E.AsT
REUBEN BELLINGER 1877 . Bt
ANN BELLINGER 1883

WILLIAM SAUNDERS 1885

JOHN SHARPE 1886

ANN BELLINGER 1890

(Closed 1892.)

These two maps supplied by Tom Reidy. Site of Imperial Hotel that was destroyed
by fire, and the Red Bull Hotel, Brown Hill Road (or Humffray Street) and the
Yarrowee River named as the River Leigh. This map also shows the North & South
Melbourne Roads.

o
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SONS OF FREEDOM HOTEL — North side of Humffray Street

THOMAS MCKENNA
JAMES TYACK
CATHERINE TYACK
BENJAMIN REID
DAVID MUSTOW
(Sold 1875)

GONG GONG HOTEL — Humffray Street North

Between Brown Hill Post Office & Duggan Street.

1865
1865
1869
1870
1872

Gre P
\\kh " im.ﬁr - //e‘
A/?‘" Dq e e //fa 5

22'(?\.\3. D;o;‘ e

(New name for Son’s of Freedom Hotel.)

ELLEN GILES
JAMES GILES
STEVENSON
GEORGE CARR
(Fire destroyed 1882)

1875
1875
1876
1878

Photo of Humffray Street North and Water Street.
Hotel was situated on the right-hand side.
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WOOLPACKER’S HOTEL — Nth side of Gong Gong Road. (Closed 1936)

R. DITCHBURN 1871
- PATRICK O'DAY 1872
ELIZABETH FLAGHTY 1914
- MARGARET MCKEONE 1914
MARY MULLIGAN 1914 A
= ELLEN MCGRATH 1917 A

, < .
\’<\ 2 y/ ’;%/rﬁ{gw v
-~ , / 4

_zﬁ/ o L.VC.”L%,“".PQEZ e
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- REFERENCE MATERIAL:
Ballarat Hotels - Past & Present compiled by John Hargreaves
— Brown Hill Hotel Licensee -Ballarat Star Newspaper - June 13 1857

Gong Gong Hotel Licensee -Ballarat Star - March 1875 Hotel
Meagher’s Hotel -Ballarat Star - March 1875

— Brown Hill Hotel — Shirl & Earl Brooks -Ballarat Courier - November 7 1991
“Pubs Row Splits City” -Ballarat Courier, December 30 1991 —

- article by Peter Mansfield
Hotels of Ballarat - A Listing of Hotels since 1853

— By J.Ivan Loch. Pub.1999

SLV Port Phillip Directories - 1853 -Bryce Ross’s Diggings’ Directory 1853
Directory 1906 -Sand’s & McDougall’s Ballarat Directory

— Directory 1890 -Niven’s Ballarat Directory

Directory 1882 -Niven’s Ballarat & District Directory
- Directory 1869 -Ballarat Directory

Directory 1862 -Sand’s & McDougall’s Ballarat Directory
— Directory 1894 — Webb’s Ballarat Directory

Dead Horse to Dancin - History of Invermay
By Pamela Toom & Dianne Campbell (White Swan Hotel)

— VPRS/937/P0 Unit 25 Liquors purchased for Police analysis
Bungaree District Road Board -The Ballarat Star - Feb 9, 1865
- Speedwell Hotel Meeting -The Ballarat Star - Feb 27, 1865
Speedwell Hotel — Inquest in to death held at Hotel -The Ballarat Star —
— December 30, 1863
- Auld Reekie Hotel -Ballarat Times - March 25, 1856 - near Native Youth
Mine
- Auld Reekie Hotel -The Ballarat Times - March 20, 1856 — Concert

Wednesday and Saturday Evenings
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Auld Reekie Hotel - Ballarat Times - Free Concert - March 20, 1856,
Full Dress Ball - The Star - September 1, 1857
Full Dress Ball - Ballarat Times, November 2, 1857.
The Ballarat Times — “Mining Column” — March 25, 1856
Publicans' Grievances - 10s a year for water troughs to be filled by the Water
Commission. The Courier March 23, 1876.
Victoria Hotel - Martin Tierney — Licensee, Ballarat Directory 1882 — Page
101 -Listed under Melbourne Road.
Prince of Wales Hotel - Brown Hill Flat - The Star July 1, 1857
The Star - February 1, 1858
Prince of Wales Hotel - Cnr Humffray Street & Scott's Parade
The Miner - June 27, 1862
Sons of Freedom Hotel - Licensee T.F.McKenna -
The Star - September 19, 1865
Dew Drop Inn - The Star - March 31, 1876
Name changed to Russell Square.
Eastern Railway Hotel - Courier December 11, 1882
Eastern Railway Hotel — Courier 22/12/1882 (License for this Hotel was
transferred from the Gong Gong Hotel, which had been destroyed by
fire.)
Eastern Station Hotel - Star October 16, 1862
Imperial Hotel - Star June 13, 1857 - on site of Railways goods sheds.
Imperial Hotel - The Star - December 25, 1857 - Fire on Bakery Hill
Imperial Hotel - Cnr Wills and Humffray Street - The Star - June 19, 1862
(Wills Street is now called Mair Street)
Native Youth - The Star -June 14, 1859
Native Youth Hotel - The Star - September 2, 1857
Native Youth - Melbourne Road, August 26, 1856
Russell Square - Closed 1872 - Hargreaves
Eureka - Little Bendigo - Niven's Directory 1882
Black Hill Hotel - Humffray Street - Weekly Miner 1859,
Star February 26, 1863.
Bricklayers Arms, The Star - May 23, 1860
Brown Hill Hotel, Humffray Street — The Star, June 13, 1857
Cape of Good Hope — The Star September 19, 1861
Cape of Good Hope Hotel & Store, Brown Hill - The Star - January 28,1863
Fellmonger -For Sale property of Mr.Castilla, Fellmonger —
The Star March 12, 1858
Fellmonger’s Arms Hotel — Sale of Store & Hotel — The Star May 12,1858
Fellmongers — Sale of Fellmonger’s business — Castilla — The Star 13/5/1858
Greyhound Hotel, The Star 8/2/1858
Caledonian Lead — The Star 8/2/1858
The Star — March 23, 1858 — Death of Charles Powell (MC, Conductor, etc.)
Publican Licenses VPRS/719/P - Unit 1 -
May 1859 Edward Aldrich Licensee, Fellmonger’s Hotel.
Little Bendigo Hotel, first licensee, Joseph Devison
Early Brown Hill — April 3,1937 — Ballarat Courier
Early Brown Hill — Business Activities — April 1937 — Ballarat Courier
Prince of Wales Hotel -The Courier — October 17, 1990 —Page 6
Native Youth Hotel -The Courier — October 17,1990 — Page 6
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Sawyers’ Arms Hotel — SE corner Oliver & Humffray Street.
G.Gude — The Star, 5/10/1864
Salutation Hotel — Annie Olsen, The Courier 13/12/1867 This was originally
the Sawyers Arms and renamed the Salutation Hotel.
The Nerrina - Morning Melodies, advertising pamphlet 10.30am, $5.00
include morning tea.
Publicans — Ballarat East — Ballarat Directory 1869
- Page 107 — Trade Directory
Brown Hill Sluicing Co. Notice to Shareholders — Signed by J.N.Wilson,
Secretary, at the Office of ] & T Oddie — The Star — May 31, 1858
(Behind the Brown Hill Hotel.)
Brown Hill Post Office — The Star, November 17, 1857
Brown Hill Post Office, the Star December 8, 1857
VPRS/880/P — Unit 5 — National School Boards
VPRS/881/P- Special Returns for National Schools Unit 1,2.3 & 4
VPRS/4775/unit 51- Map site of Queen Street Hotel.
VPRS/4771/P0001 Unit 392 — Site of Gong Gong Hotel
VPRS/4775/P Unit 36- Site of Imperial Hotel -Humffray St. &
Princes of Wales.
Old photo of Brown Hill Hotel — kind permission from K.Harris
VPRS/4775/P unit 36 — Map of Humffray Street & sites of Hotels
VPRS/6420/P Unitl. Pg.19 Ballarat East Map — Feb 22", 1871 —
Site of Victoria Hotel.
VPRS/6420/P/000-Unit 1 — Surveyor’s General Map 1861
VPRS/8159/P0001 — Units 1-4 Defunct Hotels
References of Licensees Researched by Tom Reidy:
Seven Stars, Red Bull, Brown Hill Hotel, Queen’s Head Hotel,
Dew Drop Inn, Russell Square, Robert Burns, Union Hotel,
Son’s of Freedom, Gong Gong Hotel
Licensing Registers VPRS/719/P Unit 1.1859-1864
Unit 2. 1870-1873
Price of Bread — The Star October 10, 1857
Price of ale — Eagle Hotel — Courier August 1, 1867
Bakery for sale — Times & Southern Cross September 12, 1854
American Four Horse Coaches — Times & Southern Cross September 12, 1854
Swimming Bath — The Star November 27, 1857
Sale of Unicorn Hotel — The Star, September 1, 1857
Ballarat Rates- VPRS/7258/P1 — unit 1 & 4
VPRS/6420/P — Pg.26 Little Bendigo Map - 1865




HOTELS - Brown Hill, Gong Gong, Caledonian,
Little Bendigo, Humffray Street North.

Albion Hotel, Gong Gong
21/6/1871 — Lic. J.B.Harbley
Lic. James Watt 18/3/1875
(Ref: B’rat Dist Return of liquors purchased by Police for analysis
18/3/1875. VPRS/937/P0 Unit.25
Daniel Darcy 1877

All Nations, Caledonian Lead
Lic. A. Gannon.

Auld Reekie Hotel, Hillcrest Road, Little Bendigo

Hornsby & Weatherby. (Auld Reekie meant Old Eureka Lead)

Lic.Thomas Horne — 12/6/1857 Police Court

Lic. Ellen Nielsen 9/7/1858.
Native Youth rush — considerable conjecture exists whether this short line will
proceed up the hill towards the “Auld Reekie” Hotel, or continue along the flat,
and join the long lost lead at Brown Hill. — Ballarat Times — March 25, 1856.
Ballarat Times 20/3/1856
Auld Reekie Ball 2/11/1857 — The Times
For Sale Auld Reekie Hotel & Bakery — 15/1/1858 Ballarat Times

Australsian, Clarke’s Hill
Lic. John Daly 1875
Lic. Eliza McCormack
Lic. Denis Connolly 25/3/1880
Last Lic. A.A.Connelly Deprived 28/6/1926 — VPRS/8159/P — Unit 1

Bakery Hill Hotel, Humffray St.Nth.
Map Ballarat P.RO. VPRS/4775/Unit 36
(Refer Humffray’s Bakery Hill Hotel)

Ballaguy Hotel (Black Hill Flat).
Lic. F.J.Croft 20/9/1856
Lic. Frederick J. Croft 31/7/1857
For Sale — The Times 13/4/1857

Ballarat Leagues Club (Licensing of Pokies in 1998)
52 Humffray St.Nth.

Black Hill Hotel, Black Hill Flat (Between Otway & Queen Sts.)
(Humffray St.Nth)— Licence transferred from Harp of Erin and
then became the Robert Burns Hotel.
Lic. F. Parkinson 1859
Weekly Miner 1859, Star 26/2/1863
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Blarney Inn, Cnr.Humffray & Mair Sts.
(Previously Welcome Nugget.)

10.

Brewery Tap Hotel (Previously The Glenn Hotel)
Cnr.Brewery Tap Road and Western Highway.
Lic. W.Honan 20/9/1866

11.

Brian Boru, Melbourne Road.
(Opposite Brewery Tap Hotel) Lic. P. Maher

12.

Bricklayer’s Arms Hotel, SW Cnr Victoria & Stawell Sts.
Lic. T.Young May 23,1860 The Star.
Trade Directory 1865 — Lic.T.Young

13.

Brown Hill Hotel, 385 Humffray St.Nth. Still operating.
Police Court 12/6/1857 (The Star 13/6/1857) Licensee T.Ryan.
Patron of Brown Hill National Goldfields School T.Ryan 1857
New Bistro opened — The Courier 5/3/2004

14.

Burkie’s Tavern, 75 Lofven St.
(Previously Nerrina Tavern)
Lic. John & Barbara Burke Sept 1994
Lic. Brian Vince — 2001
Lic. Dec 2001/Feb 2002 John Burke

15.

Caledonian Lead Hotel
Police Court 6/11/1857
Melbourne Road near proposed East Cattle Yards.

16.

Cape of Good Hope Hotel & Store, Brown Hill
The Star 19/9/1861
For Sale, near Mr.Ryan The Star 28/1/1863

17.

Carrier’s Arms Hotel, Fellmongers Road
Lic. James Giles 23/6/1875

18.

Cosmopolitan Hotel, Humffray Street North
(Subsequently The Pioneer Hotel) Lic. J. Betts.

19.

Duke of Richmond Hotel, Cnr Wills (Mair St.) & Humffray St.
Lic. H. Gabbett 28/6/1860. This is the site of The Gamekeepers Secret
Hotel.

20.

Dew Drop Inn (Then became the Russell Square Hotel — then the site of
Haymes Bakery)
NW Chnr Stawell & Humffray Street North.
Lic. R. Anderson
The Star 31/7/1876




21.

Donegan’s Hotel, Sth side of Victoria Street,
Next to Orphanage.

22.

Duke of York.
East side of Humffray Street, 2 doors from NE Cnr Wills St (Mair St)
T.Mulder — The Star 16/8/1860

23.

Eastern Railway (Rumerz) Humffray St.Nth.
(Between Corbett & Mair Street.) 22/12/1882

Licensee: E.Murphy (Licence transferred from Gong Gong Hotel)

24.

Eastern Station (Closed in the 1990’s, now a licensed Guest House).
81 Humffray St.Nth. (Cnr. Rowe & Humffray Sts.) Lic. W.Rose.

(Ballarat Trade Directory 1865 — Lic. Thos.Hunt)

(Ballarat Rate Notices — Thos Hunt Licensee 1863.)

Star 16/10/1862 & Miner 27/6/62

25.

Erin-go-Bragh Hotel, Caledonian Lead
(Melbourne Road, near proposed East Cattle Yards)
Police Court 6/11/1857

26.

Eureka Hotel, Little Bendigo
J.Dowling 1882

217.

Farmer’s Arms Hotel, Junction of Nth & Sth Melbourne Roads.
Lic. M. Crough 13/4/1869

28.

Farmer’s Hotel, Claretown, Springbank Road.
Mary Moylan. First Lic.Thos.T.Kane, 1916.
Closed November 1952. VPRS/8159/P

29,

Farmers Inn, Fellmongers Road, Gong Gong
Lic. Joseph William Daw 24/12/1885

30.

Fellmonger’s Arms, Brewery Tap Road
Licensee Mr.Edwards
Lic. Aldrich Edwards 1859-60
Lic. Felix Brightincle 1861
Lic. Brightwell — 1861,1862 & 1863
Lic. Thos.Ryan 1874
Lic. Robert McRobinston 1875
(For Sale — Fellmonger’s Arms & Stores, lately in the occupation of
Mr.Edwards, consisting of a well built HOTEL. The Star 13/5/1858)
6/3/1902 Thomas Nestor Licensee.
Fire destroyed Hotel — 2/6/1911 — VPRS/8159/P

31.

Forester’s Arms Hotel, SW Cnr.Queen & Humffray Sts.
Lic. C. Nicholson 25/12/1865




32.

Gamekeeper’s Secret, Cnr. Humffray & Mair Sts.
(Previously Blarney Inn)

33.

Glen Park Hotel, Glen Park
Lic. Edward George Edwards Sept 1880

34.

Golden Cross Hotel, Humffray Street Nth. (Near Russell Square)
Lic. E. Buttler 26/6/1865

35

Golden Rooster Reception Centre, Lofven Street.
(Nerrina Tavern, Burkie’s Tavern, The Nerrina)
Owner Egon Wuelfing - Built 1968-69

36.

Gong Gong Hotel, Humffray St.Nth
(Previously Son’s of Freedom Hotel.)
(Between the Brown Hill Post Office & Duggan Street)
Lic. E. Giles 23/3/1875  (Fire 1882)
In Court 13/3/1875 application by Ellen Giles to be called Gong Gong Hotel.

37.

Greyhound Hotel, Caledonian Lead
Lic Mark Barnes Police Court 15/8/1857
Lic. H. Barnes 16/6/1858
(House for Sale near Greyhound Hotel — The Star 3/2/1858)

38.

Hand of Friendship Hotel, Fellmongers, Gong Gong
Lic. W.Searle 24/9/1875

39.

Harp of Erin, Humffray St.Nth.
(Opposite the Red Bull Hotel between Otway & Queen Sts.)
(Near Methodist Church) Lic. J. Fogarty 31/1/1867

40.

Humffray’s Bakery Hill, West side of Humffray Street
Six or seven doors from NW Cnr of Victoria St.
Lic. Frederick Humffray 27/5/1860

41.

Imperial Hotel, Humffray Street, Bakery Hill
Lic. J. Wray. (Set back from Humffray street, near railway goods shed
off Corbett Street. Destroyed by fire 25/12/1857. Rebuilt, but then sold to
Railways for land for construction of Railway Goods sheds.

42.

Imperial Hotel (Welcome Nugget, Blarney Inn, Gamekeeper’s
Secret) SE Cnr Mair & Humffray Sts.
(Previously Duke of Richmond.)  The Star 19/6/1862

43.

Jackson’s Hotel, SW Cnr Victoria & Stawell Streets.
Lic. John T. Jackson 11/1/1870




44. | Leigh Creek Hotel, Melbourne Road.
First Lic. W.J.Duffy. Licence lapsed 31.12.1970.
The existing building on the Western Highway was built in 1924.
VPRS/8159/P/0 — Unit 1-4
45. | Linlithgow Hotel, near Junction of Nth & Sth Melbourne Roads
(Fire November 16, 1861 — Rebuilt)
Lic. J. Ritchie 16/10/1857
Lic. J. Ritchie 21/12/1875
“On Saturday afternoon, between four and five o’clock, flames were seen
ascending from the Old Linlithgow Hotel. They’re being no adequate means at
hand to stay the progress of the fire; the building was reduced to ashes in a few
minutes. — The Star 18/11/1861.
“The dinner of the Warrenheip Cricket Club took place on Wednesday
evening, at the Linlithgow Hotel, Warrenheip to which about forty gentlemen
sat down. Mr.T.Warrel occupied the chair. Amongst those present were
several members of the Ballarat Cricket Club — during the evening it was
decided a match should be played on the club ground on Wednesday.”
The Star — June 17, 1864.
46. | Little Bendigo Hotel, Lofven Street, Little Bendigo.
Lic. J. Devison 12/6/1868 Hotel built by Mr.Deveson in 1854
Lic.Thomas Fidler 5/12/1878
Lic.Annie Sheridan 1908 Deprived 31/12/08 — Ref. VPRS/8159/P
47. | Lord Clive, Humffray St.Nth.
(In vicinity of Victoria Sts.)
Lic. J. B. Hawley 12/3/1870
48. | Lord Clyde, West side of Humffray St.
(6 to 7 doors from NW Cnr. Victoria St.)
Lic. A. Alston 21/7/1868
49. | Lover of Justice Hotel, Caledonian Lead.
Lic. J. Gannon (Apparently licence not granted.)
50. | Lusitania Hotel, Humffray St Nth, Bakery Hill
3 doors from NW Chnr of Victoria St.
Lic. Antonia Carvolo 23/12/1881
51. | Meagher’s Hotel, Melbourne Road

(Previously Bricklayer’s Hotel-1858)

(One door up from SW Cnr Victoria & Stawell’s Sts.)
Lic. T. Young 1858

Lic. T. Young 1888

Lic. Imputt 1995

Closed late 1990°s.
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6.

Melbourne Road Hotel, Meagher’s
Sth side Victoria Street, next to Orphanage.
Lic. P. Maddern 16/6/1858

53.

Monte Christo Hotel, Little Bendigo -1859

54.

Native Youth Hotel - NW Cnr Haines & Humffray Sts.
Lic. E. Denman 14/6/1859
(For Sale 2/9/1857 — The Star)
The Star 14/12/1857

5.

Native Youth Hotel, Melbourne Road
The Star 26/8/1856

56.

Nerrina Tavern, 75 Lofven Street
(Adjoining the Golden Rooster Reception Centre)
Lic. — S. Gull, T.Burke, D.Hollway.

57.

Northages, (1882)
SW Cnr Vic & Stawell Sts. — south side.
(Between Stawell & Rodier Sts.)

58.

Oddfellows Hotel.
SW Cnr Wills & Humffray Street (Now known as Mair & Humffray Sts.)
Star 16/6/1858
Map — Ballarat Public Records Office VPRS/4775/Unit 36

59.

Old Gum Tree.
Humffray Street. (Position not known) G.Prince.
Star 25/10/1862

60.

O’Neill’s Brewery Tap Hotel, Melbourne Road (just past Brewery Tap Road)
Edmund O’Neil 1875

61.

Old Monte Christo, Little Bendigo
Lic. J. T. Dowling 14/6/1861

62.

Pallas Crean, SE Cnr Victoria & Stawell Sts.
Lic. C. Donegan 29/10/1864
Trade Directory 1865 — Lic. Thomas Raleigh

63.

Picnic Hotel, Fellmonger’s Road, David Muster, Gong Gong
Lic. David F. Mustow 15/12/1874 (The Star 15/12/1874)
Licence granted on 14/12/1874 for Picnic Hotel, Fellmongers Road.
Ballarat Rates VPRS/7266/P1

64.

Pioneer Hotel, Humffray St.Nth. 1882-1892
SE Cnr Princes & Humffray Sts.
Lic. J. Betts




65.

Prince of Wales Hotel, Brown Hill
Police Court 24/7/1857. Re-opened 4/8/1857
For Sale 1/2/1858 — apply to proprietor Thos.Hunt
1/7/1857 — The Star.
For Sale - 1/2/1858 The Star.

66.

Prince of Wales Hotel, Humffray St.Nth.
(Humffray St.Nth — 6 doors down from Cnr. Of Mair &
Humffray St.Nth, west side, before Railway Line.)
Lic. J. Elsey 9/11/1869
Ballarat Directory 1865 — Lic. T.Good
The Miner 27/6/1862
Some Ballarat Pioneers — 1860 Thomas Hunt.

67.

Prince Regent, Caledonian Lead
Lic. A. Putclkow 13/6/1857

68.

Queen’s Head Hotel (Originally two doors up, now on
SW Cnr of Humffray & Queen Sts.) 146 Humffray St.Nth.
Lic. T.Sewell. Present Hotel built 1907. Still operating.
Inquest at Queen’s Head Hotel —The Star — 28/4/1864 & 29/4/1864

69.

Red Bull Hotel, Humffray Street North.

(Nth side of Humffray Street, between Queen & Newman Sts.)

Lic. W. Bull Lic Granted 22/6/1858

The Star 10/4/1858
(Wm.Bull is listed in Bryce Ross’s Directory of 1853 as owner of Little
Scotland Stores, Brown Hill.)

70.

Robert Burns Hotel (Previously Black Hill Hotel)
Humffray St.Nth. (Between Otway & Queen Sts)

For Sale 4/12/1856 (near Union Hotel)

Lic. Granted 22/6/1858 East Police Courts 13/6/1859

Lic. Jas Miller 15/12/1874

Lic.A.Farquharson Trade Directory 1865

6 B

Royal Oak Hotel, Melbourne Road (before Brewery Tap Road)
Cornelius McMahon 1874

72.

Rumerz Hotel, 50 Humffray St.Nth
NE Cnr Mair & Humffray Sts.

73.

Russell Square Hotel, Humffray St.Nth
(Previously Dew Drop Inn)
NW Cnr Stawell & Humffray Sts.
Lic. J. Thompson 31/7/1892




74.

Salutation Hotel, SE Cnr Oliver & Humffray St.Nth.
(Previously Sawyer’s Arms Hotel)
Lic. Annie Olsen 13/12/1867

f

Sawyer’s Arms Hotel, SE Cnr Oliver & Humffray St.
Lic. C. Gude
The Star 5/10/1864 Publican’s Licence for Cnr. Of Oliver & Humffray St

and the Hotel to be called Sawyer’s Arms.

76.

Scandinavian, Little Bendigo
Lic. O. Skogland 14/6/1861
Lic. G.Nott — The Star 30/5/1861

77.

Servacan’s Head Hotel, Humffray St.Nth.
Map Ballarat P.R.O. VPRS/4775/unit 36

76.

Seven Stars Hotel, Sth side of Humffray St.Nth. (226 Humffray Street)

(One house before cnr Stawell & Humffray St.Nth.)
Lic. T. Hayden 19/12/1876
Licensee — 17/7/1908 Eliz. Mary Wright

4/2/1910 — Thomas Williams

20/9/1912 — M. A. Cremin

19/2/1915 — Albert Edward Sudween

Deprived 31.12.1920

78.

Son’s of Freedom Hotel, approx.413 Humffray St.Nth.
(The Star 19/9/1865)
(The Star 7/10/1865)
Lic. T.F.McKenna 6/10/1865
Lic. James Tyack 18/12/1865 VPRS 7258/P/000 Units 1-10
Lic. James Tyack 14/1/1867
Lic. Catherine Tyack 1867
Lic. Catherine Tyack 1869-70
Lic. David B. Mustow 1871-72
Lic. David Mustow 1873-74
(Change of name to Gong Gong Hotel 1875)

19

Speedwell Hotel, Little Bendigo (In the vicinity of “Jackson’s Tin Shed)

Lic. T.Petch - 1863

Lic. P. Conway 26/10/1864

Lic. O. Skogland 18/3/1875
The Star — December 30,1863 — On Tuesday, at the Speedwell Hotel,
Dr.Glendinning held an inquest on the body of Henry Farley(Furley?), whose
death, according to the evidence, and the verdict of the jury, took place on the
day previous, at Sheepskin Gully, Little Bendigo, and was caused by drowning.
The deceased was the eldest son of William Farley, miner and Elizabeth, Little
Bendigo, a native of the place, and six years of age. He had been sent on a
message.

Licensees: Annie Look 1910, Mary Burke 1912, and Eunic Petch 1913.

Deprived 31/5/191




80.

Suburban Inn, Little Bendigo
Lic. Margaret Brady 30/12/1872

81.

Temperance Hotel, Little Bendigo
Lic. J. Fisher 1882

82.

The Glenn, Cnr.Brewery Tap Road & Melbourne Road.
Lic. McCrough 2/7/1864

83.

The Nerrina, 75 Lofven Street, Nerrina

(Previously Burkie’s Tavern)
Lic. Kelly Roscoe 2003

84.

Toll Gate Hotel, Victoria Street (Near Orphanage).
Lic. D. Finlay 21/7/1865

85.

Traveller’s Home, Pootilla. Lic. Patrick Maher — Surrendered 18/10/1920
Lic. Patrick McCrossen 1874-75

86.

Union Hotel, Sth side Humffray St.Nth,
Between Princes & King Sts. (In 1856 Directory)
Lic. J. H. Spahake 6/5/1857
Closed 1892.

87.

Victoria Hotel, Melbourne Road.
(Previously called Victoria St, and then called Melbourne Road.
Now known as Old Melbourne Road.)
Lic. J. Fallon 5/1/1869.
Licensee M.Tierney 1882
(Closed 1921.)
Victoria Hotel, Victoria Street. Licensee Denis Cornelius Moloney.
Licensee’s: 7/10/1910 Theresa Moloney, 6/7/1914 John Freeman, 28/1/1919
Honora Teresa Egan, 19/10/1921 William Rees, 6/3/1922 John Henn
Deprived Feb 22 as at 31/12/1922.

88.

Victoria Hotel, Gong Gong
Lic. T.Ryan 16/12/1874

89.

Welcome Nugget Hotel, 48 Humffray St.Nth
(Welcome Nugget, Previously the Imperial Hotel)

90.

Waggoner’s Arms, Pootilla
Lic. Wm. Manley. Surrendered as from 31/12/1908.
Lic. John Keating 1874-84

2

Wattle Flat, Wattle Flat

Lic.Mary Peal, Annie Lork 1909, Mary McCullock 1910, Thos Ryan 1912,
surrender accepted 26/11/1912, destroyed by fire in November 1912.

Mary Fitzgerald 20/12/1883.
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White Swan Hotel, Springs Road (Dead Horse Road, Glen Park)
Lic. W. Ritchie
Charlotte D.Ritchie.
Deprived 31/12/1915

93.

Woodman’s Arms (Previously Woodman’s Inn). Closed 1915
Owner Francis Anne Paige. Deprived 25/5/15 as at 31/12/1915.

94.

Woodman’s Inn, Melbourne Road
1864

9s.

Woolpacker’s Inn, Daylesford Road, Gong Gong
Nth side of Gong Gong road.
Lic. R. Ditchburn. 1871
Lic. Patrick O’Day 18/3/1875
Lic. Mary Mulligan to Eliz Flaghty 1914, Margaret McKeone 1914,
Mary Mulligan 1914.  Ellen McGrath 1917-1936. Closed 1936.

96.

Warrenheip Hotel, - For sale 5 acres — adjoining block upon which the
Warrenheip Hotel is erected. — The Star Feb 1858.

VPRS/8159/P0001 Units 1-4 — Defunct Hotels

1892 — Closing of 66 Hotels by Local Option.
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Odd Fellows Arms is the present
site of the old Humffray Street Primary School, and is now an antique shop.

Maps — with kind permission from the Ballarat Public Records Office.
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Bakery Hill Hotel — block between Victoria Street & Mair Street.
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Reproduced with the kind permission of the
Keeper of Public Records, Public Record
Office Victoria, Australia.
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-~ BROWN HILL HOTEL- 385 Humffray St.Nth.

Hotel Licencees:

THOMAS RYAN 1857
~ FRANCIS BRADBURY 1867
~ GEORGE SCHMIDT 1882 '
PATRICK O’'DAY 1887
- WILLIAM O’DAY 1894
— HONORA O’DAY 1900
HONORA MCMAHON 1901
- EDGAR PETER 1903
~ ALEX BUCHANAN 1905
ADA HAMLYN 1906
= STEPHEN SKIPPER 1906
~ JOHN KELLY 1907
MICHAEL HARRINGTON 1908
= WILLIAM MANLEY 1910
— JULIA GALVIN 1911
THOMAS KINCADE 1912
- ALLAN MCGREGOR 1913
— BRIDGET BRAYBROOK 1921
CHARLES RICE 1930
= JUNE CARSON 1936
~ MARY TURNER 1937
HERBERT BOWMAN 1943
- MARTIN CONNELLY 1947
- - JOHN SHEPPERBOTTOM 1948
JAMES ARTHUR 1949
- JOHN RASDELL 1951
— DONALD HUNTER 1953
WILLIAM TURNER 1957
- JAMES HAYES 1963
- GEORGE HAINTZ 1966
EARL BROOKS 1980
- KEVIN FRANCIS 1995
- ANTHONY KOOPE 1998

KEVIN HARRIS 2002




